# 

# D4.3 Learning tools on intercultural and impact teampreneurship Module 3 - Social4Impact



# **Document Information**

Issued by	Diversity4Equality S.COOP
Issue Date	16/02/2025
Authors	Maialen Mendizabal
Dissemination level	Public

# **Document History**

Version	Date	Comments and main modifications	
01	16/02/2025	Version 1	
02	18/02/2024	Deliverable shared to QA team and External Quality Reviewer for feedback	
03	26/02/2024	Last adjustments of the deliverable – Version 2	
04			

# Funding information and disclaimer

The TEAMIT+ project is funded by the European Union (Grant Agreement Nr. 101111560). Views and opinions expressed are however those of the author(s) only and do not necessarily reflect those of the European Union or the European Education and Culture Executive Agency (EACEA). Neither the European Union nor EACEA can be held responsible for them.



Co-funded by the European Union

# **Table of Contents**

Introduction – reminder of the methodology dimensions and their four materials	4
Social4Impact implementation philosophy	8
1. Teampreneurship	8
2. Self-leadership & Team leadership	8
3. Impact driven businesses	10
Breakdown of the modules, their theory and tools	12
0. Online Webinars	12
1. Getting to know myself	14
2. Team creation	16
3. Challenge Definition & Context Setting	19
4. Ideation Process & Concept validation	22
5. Market Validation and prototyping	25
6. Market & Customer Analysis	27
7. Application of Tech4good.	Erreur ! Signet non défini.
8. Prototyping	32
9. Growth Strategy	34
10. Business Model	36
11. Impact Measurement	39
12. Pitching	41
Expected impacts	43
Conclusion	45
References	47

# Learning tools and contents on environmental issues

# Introduction – reminder of the methodology dimensions and their four materials

Module 3: Social4Impact is the last module of the TEAMIT+ programme, designed to empower young people from Spain, France, Greece and Finland through a practical, collaborative and action-oriented approach to the challenges of climate change. This module represents a unique opportunity for 40 selected participants (10 from each country) to work together in multicultural teams, combining diverse knowledge and experiences to develop innovative and sustainable solutions.

The relevance of this module lies in its ability to connect young people to global and local realities, fostering intercultural understanding and active engagement with critical environmental issues. From a 4-month process, the programme will take participants on a transformative journey that includes virtual workshops, an immersive experience in Finland, remote collaborative work and a final event in the Basque Country. This structure is designed to maximise learning, creativity and the implementation of viable projects.



Figure 1. Module 3: Social4Impact Workflow

Climate change is one of the most urgent challenges of our time, and tackling it requires multidisciplinary and collaborative approaches. Module 3 seeks not only to raise awareness among young people about the seriousness of this crisis, but also to equip them with the tools and knowledge to act as agents of change in their communities and beyond. In this context, social innovation emerges as a key strategy to create positive impact, integrating creative and practical solutions with a people and planet-centred approach.

Working in multicultural teams is another key pillar of the module. Through interaction with participants from different countries, it seeks to enrich the learning process and foster a deeper understanding of diversity as a valuable resource in solving complex problems. Participants will not only develop technical skills, but also essential soft skills such as intercultural communication, leadership and empathy.

Overall, Module 3 is positioned as a laboratory of ideas and actions where passionate and committed young people can explore their potential for social and environmental impact. This paper will delve into the conceptual, methodological and practical details that underpin this unique educational experience.

The methodology of Module 3 is based on four key dimensions that guide the integral development of participants and their projects:

1. Personal Development (Tool: Transformational Passport): Throughout the module, personal growth will be encouraged through guided activities and reflections that will allow participants to explore their values, strengths and areas for improvement. This dimension is supported by the Transformational Passport, a tool designed to document and evaluate their personal evolution.



Figure 2. Transformational Passport Design for TEAMIT+.

2. Team Development (Tool: <u>Team Map</u>): Effective collaboration in multicultural teams is essential to the success of the module. Using a team map, participants will identify roles, dynamics and strategies to optimise their collective functioning, strengthening their ability to work in diverse and complex environments.



Figure 3. Map, team purpose & values development side.



Figure 4. Map, project development side.

3. Project Development (Tool: <u>Toolkit</u>): Each participant will be provided with a toolkit that will provide the necessary tools to advance the development of innovative solutions. This resource will cover from challenge identification to the implementation of growth strategies and impact measurement.



4. Community Development (Tool: D4E Hub Digital Platform): The module will foster the creation of an active and connected community through the D4E Hub digital platform. This tool will serve as a space for the exchange of ideas, resources and learning, strengthening relationships between participants and facilitating collaborative work.



Figure 6. D4E Hub Prototype.

# Social4Impact implementation philosophy

### 1. Teampreneurship

Developing solutions to environmental and social challenges from a global perspective while ensuring a local impact. Addressing these issues through a diverse and multicultural lens adds significant value to the solutions created. Teams formed by individuals from different backgrounds bring a variety of perspectives, fostering more innovative and inclusive approaches.

Team entrepreneurship (teampreneurship) serves as a powerful tool for collective learning. By working together, team members amplify knowledge, share skills, and enhance the impact of their initiatives. This collaborative approach not only accelerates personal and professional growth but also strengthens the effectiveness of solutions developed.

A key theoretical framework underpinning this concept is Milton Bennett's Developmental Model of Intercultural Sensitivity (DMIS) <sup>1</sup>. Bennett's model explains how individuals and teams progress through different stages of intercultural awareness, from ethnocentric to ethnorelative perspectives. According to Bennett, teams that actively engage with cultural differences move from denial and defense towards adaptation and integration. This evolution enables them to leverage diversity as a strength, enhancing their ability to co-create solutions with a broader and deeper understanding of global challenges.

In essence, teampreneurship is not just about working together—it is about learning through collaboration, expanding perspectives, and co-creating impactful, sustainable solutions to the pressing challenges of our time.

### 2. Self Leadership & Team Leadership

Effective leadership begins with **self-leadership**—the ability to lead oneself before leading a team. This requires a process of **personal development, introspective work, and proactive efforts** for continuous improvement. Developing self-awareness and resilience empowers individuals to navigate challenges effectively and cultivate a growth mindset.

Vulnerability and empathy play a crucial role in leadership, enabling individuals to connect with others and foster **positive societal impact**. By embracing these qualities, participants enhance their ability to **drive change and create meaningful impact** within their teams and communities. Leaders who are open about their own challenges and emotions build trust and psychological safety within their teams, fostering a more collaborative and inclusive environment.

Furthermore, self-leadership involves identifying not only **challenges** but also **personal interests and passions**, which serve as the foundation for entrepreneurial initiatives. Recognising one's strengths and aligning them with

8

meaningful goals increases motivation and engagement, leading to more sustainable and impactful leadership.

Participants are encouraged to take ownership of their journeys, becoming **proactive architects of their present and future**. This requires a shift from a passive mindset to an **entrepreneurial approach** where individuals actively seek opportunities, take calculated risks, and embrace uncertainty as part of the growth process.

This approach aligns with the project's commitment to fostering **autonomy**, **creativity**, **and leadership** as essential components of entrepreneurial learning. Theoretical frameworks such as **Milton Bennett's Developmental Model of Intercultural Sensitivity (DMIS)** provide insight into how individuals progress in their ability to interact effectively across cultural boundaries. By developing intercultural competence alongside self-leadership, participants become more adaptable and capable of leading diverse, multicultural teams in an increasingly globalised world.

Ultimately, self-leadership acts as the cornerstone for **team leadership**, as individuals who cultivate a deep understanding of themselves can better inspire, guide, and support others. This mindset shift enables participants to **co-create impact-driven initiatives**, reinforcing the project's mission to develop changemakers who contribute to sustainable and equitable solutions for societal challenges.

### 3. Impact Driven Business

The projects developed within this methodology are designed to address pressing environmental challenges while adhering to the 5P framework: People, Planet, Purpose, Profit, and Prosperity. This approach ensures that entrepreneurial initiatives generate meaningful and sustainable impact at multiple levels.

**People**: Successful impact-driven businesses prioritise the well-being of individuals, both within and outside their teams. Human-centric decision-making fosters inclusive, ethical, and responsible leadership, ensuring that every stakeholder—whether team members, customers, or communities—benefits from the business's activities. Emphasising psychological safety, diversity, and co-creation, this pillar ensures that all voices are heard and valued in the entrepreneurial process.

Planet: Addressing environmental sustainability is at the core of these ventures. The goal is to create solutions

9

that either prevent negative environmental impacts, neutralise existing harm, or contribute to environmental regeneration. This involves circular economy principles, carbon footprint reduction strategies, and responsible sourcing of materials. The methodology encourages businesses to integrate regenerative models that go beyond minimising harm and actively contribute to environmental restoration.

**Purpose**: Purpose acts as the guiding principle for these businesses, ensuring alignment between the entrepreneurial journey and long-term societal impact. Teams that share a clear, well-defined purpose are more resilient and committed to the success of their ventures. Unlike traditional business models that focus solely on financial returns, impact-driven businesses prioritise the mission above all, allowing flexibility in how solutions are designed while ensuring alignment with core values.

**Profit**: Financial sustainability is fundamental for impact-driven businesses. While they operate within the impact economy, they must generate sufficient revenue to cover operational costs, pay team members, and sustain long-term viability. However, the allocation of surplus differs from conventional profit-driven models. Rather than distributing excess earnings among shareholders, surplus funds are reinvested into expanding the business's impact—whether through developing new initiatives, hiring talent, or scaling operations to reach wider audiences.

**Prosperity**: The ultimate vision extends beyond financial wealth to creating thriving, equitable societies. Impactdriven entrepreneurship is about shaping a legacy for future generations by fostering systemic change. The emphasis is not on individual wealth accumulation but on creating collective prosperity, where businesses contribute to social well-being, economic inclusivity, and environmental resilience. Through the lens of 'impact teampreneurship for climate change,' this pillar advocates for business models that drive positive transformation at a global level while empowering local communities.

By embedding the 5P framework into entrepreneurial practice, this methodology ensures that participants develop ventures with long-term sustainability, ethical responsibility, and tangible impact. The integration of impact measurement tools, systems-thinking approaches, and collaborative ecosystems further supports the development of businesses that align profit with purpose, ensuring that entrepreneurship becomes a force for positive change in tackling environmental and social challenges.



Figure 7. The 5P's.

## Breakdown of the modules, their theory and tools

### 0. Online Workshops

As part of the Social4Impact methodology within the TEAMIT+ program, Module 0 consists of a series of four **online workshops designed to prepare participants before attending the first bootcamp**. These webinars aim to introduce participants to the program, provide background knowledge on climate-related challenges, develop teamwork skills, and foster an understanding of impact entrepreneurship in a multicultural setting.

### 1. Social4Impact Welcoming

The first webinar serves as an introductory session where participants get their first contact with the program, its objectives, and expected impacts. The session facilitates networking by allowing participants to familiarize themselves with one another. To enhance engagement, each participant is required to record a one-minute video introducing themselves and sharing their motivations for joining TEAMIT+. These videos are compiled in a shared folder, enabling participants to identify different profiles and interests within the cohort. The session also includes an overview of past experiences in the program and a Q&A segment to address any doubts.

### 2. Background Information About the Climate Emergency Challenge

In the second webinar, TEAMIT+ ambassadors take the lead, sharing insights into their work throughout the program. They present their process of identifying critical needs, the solutions they have developed, and their experiences in tackling climate-related issues. The primary objective is not only to disseminate information but also to establish meaningful connections between ambassadors and new participants. This interaction fosters future collaborations, leveraging the experiences of previous cohorts to support and inspire new teams in their journey towards impactful solutions.

### 3. High-Performance Teams

This session focuses on the principles of effective teamwork. It delves into the differences between working groups, teams, and high-performance teams, emphasizing the benefits of the latter. The theoretical framework is based on David Sibbet's model of high-performance teams <sup>2</sup>, which outlines the phases necessary for building a cohesive and efficient team. Participants gain an understanding of the essential dynamics that contribute to

successful collaboration, enabling them to work more effectively throughout the program.



Figure 8. David Sibbet - Team Performance Model.

### 4. Impact Entrepreneurship & Cultural Diversity

Given that TEAMIT+ is designed for multicultural teams working on impact-driven ventures, this webinar explores key aspects of impact entrepreneurship and how to navigate cultural diversity. Participants are introduced to the defining characteristics of impact-driven businesses and provided with real-world examples. Additionally, the session draws upon Milton Bennett's framework for intercultural sensitivity, helping participants develop strategies to work efficiently in diverse teams while fostering mutual understanding and respect.



Figure 9. Milton Bennett - Intercultural Sensitivity.

By completing Module 0, participants are equipped with foundational knowledge, essential connections, and a strong collaborative mindset, ensuring they are fully prepared to embark on their Social4Impact journey in the subsequent stages of TEAMIT+.

### 1. Getting to know myself

The first module of Social4Impact is designed to encourage participants to engage in personal reflection and activate their introspective process. As Che Guevara once stated, *"We cannot transform the world without first transforming ourselves."* This philosophy guides the approach of **My Hand**, a structured self-reflection tool that uses the five fingers and the lines of the palm to prompt meaningful questions and insights.

Understanding oneself is a crucial step in the Social4Impact journey, as self-awareness directly impacts teamwork, leadership, and problem-solving abilities. By deeply reflecting on personal strengths, weaknesses, motivations, and aspirations, participants build a solid foundation for their engagement in the program. The goal is not only self-discovery but also the alignment of personal purpose with collective impact.

### The My Hand Reflection Tool

- Thumb Finger (Approval & Strengths): This finger is often associated with approval and positive reinforcement. Participants reflect on:
  - What am I good at?
  - What are my strengths?
  - What can I bring into this program?
- Index Finger (Pointer & Direction): Commonly used for indicating direction, this finger prompts reflections on:
  - Where do I want to go?
  - Where do I come from?
  - What is my objective and how am I going to work towards it?
  - What is important to me that my colleagues should know?
- Middle Finger (Obstacles & Barriers): Recognized for its societal symbolism of rejection, this finger is used to

identify challenges:

- What do I want to leave behind?
- What do I dislike when working in a team?
- Ring Finger (Commitment & Relationships): Traditionally linked to commitment, this finger prompts reflections

on:

- What do I want to commit to?
- How do I want to interact with my colleagues?

- Little Finger (Growth & Support): Despite being the smallest, it holds significance for promises and trust. Reflection questions include:
  - Where do I want to grow and how would I challenge myself?
  - What are my weaknesses or challenges?
  - What do I need to ask my colleagues to help me with?

### Palm of the Hand: Deeper Reflections

In addition to the individual fingers, the lines on the palm of the hand provide deeper insight into participants' personal journeys and aspirations. These reflections help them better understand their roles within the program and their potential for impact.

- 1. Line of Life: Considering diversity, what unique value do I bring to the program?
- 2. Line of Mind: With what mindset and attitude do I approach this experience?
- 3. Line of Love: What shared purpose do I have with this program?
- 4. Line of Destiny: Where do I want to go with or through the program?



Figure 10. My Handprint.

This module is designed to encourage participants to think critically about their personal and professional growth. By engaging in this introspective process, they gain clarity on their motivations and goals, which helps them establish meaningful connections with their peers. The **My Hand** tool provides a structured yet flexible framework for exploring essential questions that shape both individual contributions and collective success within the program.

Furthermore, self-awareness is a key component of leadership. Participants who understand their strengths and limitations are better equipped to navigate challenges, collaborate effectively, and take initiative in impact-driven projects. By

identifying areas for growth and setting clear commitments, they lay the groundwork for long-term personal and professional development.

Through this structured exercise, participants gain greater self-awareness, clarify their personal goals, and establish a purpose-driven approach to their Social4Impact journey. This self-reflection lays the foundation for stronger connections with fellow participants and enhances collaboration in subsequent modules.

### 2. Team Creation

In order to create the teams, first participants need to know a little bit more each other by some dynamics that can help identifying tematics they are interested in working on, which kind of profiles do they have (not only technical skills but soft skills too), those are some dynamics that can help for this stage:

- Thermometer: consists of deciding on a scale from 0 to 10 how much we like, dislike... a theme or how we feel about it (Motivation, Innovation, Climate change awareness, if we already tried the entrepreneurship, if we do something about climate change...) participants will have to position themselves on a number according to their personal opinion and the rest can identify where is the rest of participants positioning.
- Option A or B: Participants need to decide one of two options:
  - What's your natural role in a team?
    - The creative thinker with new ideas
    - The planner who organizes everything
  - How do you approach solving a big challenge?
    - Dive straight in and adapt along the way
    - Plan thoroughly before taking action
  - If you have to start a business tomorrow, what would it be?
    - A sustainable product
    - A sustainable tech-based
- Find someone who...: This dynamic is to share experiences and learnings ones with the others. So, we are asking

participants to find someone that did something, and they want to share the experience with the rest.

- That worked in a social innovation project
- Collaborated or worked in a project about climate change
- Did volunteering
- The **Constellations** activity is designed to help participants recognize their personal connections and shared interests within the group. This dynamic consists of **two rounds**, each serving a distinct purpose.

### **Round 1: Mapping Personal Connections**

In the first round, participants are asked to move physically closer to those with whom they have felt the strongest connection. The closer they stand to someone, the stronger the perceived bond. This creates a **living map** of relationships within the group. Once the participants have positioned themselves, a **photo is taken** to capture the web of connections formed.

### **Round 2: Identifying Common Interests**

For the second round, several large thematic categories—based on previous discussions—are placed on the ground. These themes typically include broad topics such as **energy, circular economy, health, or sustainable cities**. Participants must position themselves near the topic that interests them the most. If they feel torn between two topics, they can stand in the middle, signalling their mixed interest.

At the end of this round, another **photo is taken** to visualize the distribution of interests. This allows organizers and participants to **assess the overall balance** of themes, understand which areas generate the most engagement, and create more aligned teams based on shared motivations. By combining personal connections with thematic interests, the **Constellations** exercise helps shape well-balanced teams, fostering collaboration and synergy for the challenges ahead.

To initiate the team creation process, participants engaged in a structured brainstorming session using the **World Café** methodology. They were divided into small groups and tasked with identifying key challenges related to the climate crisis. These challenges were then distributed across different thematic stations as we have identified them in previous dynamics.

Participants rotated through each station in 10 minutes rounds and mixing from one station to the other, contributing their

ideas and perspectives to the identified challenges. This dynamic approach ensured that everyone had the opportunity to engage with multiple topics before selecting the challenge that resonated most with them—the issue they would work on for the next five days. Once all participants get over all the stations, they have to choose the theme they liked the most and decide with the group of people that get together in the topic the 3 best challenges or more interesting ones. After that, the 3 best challenges are shared with the rest of participants and the last chance to change the topic happens so participants can move from one group to the other for the last time.

Then, from a dialogue, they have to decide what the teams will be based on their profiles, multiculturalism and the challenges they have identified with their interests.

Once teams organically formed around specific challenges, participants dedicated time to shaping their group identity. Each team collaboratively selected a name and crafted a mantra—a guiding phrase designed to inspire and unify them throughout the process.

By the end of the session, **10 multicultural teams** had been successfully established, each ready to develop innovative solutions to address pressing environmental issues.

### Team Formation Dynamics: World Café Approach

Effective teams are the foundation of impact-driven entrepreneurship. The **Social4Impact** module is designed to cultivate multicultural, multidisciplinary, and purpose-driven teams, ensuring that participants leverage their diverse skills, backgrounds, and perspectives to create innovative solutions for environmental and social challenges.

Building a strong team goes beyond merely assembling individuals—it requires intentional and strategic design. The team creation process follows these core principles:

- Diversity as a Strength: Inspired by Milton Bennett's Model of Intercultural Development, we recognize that embracing diversity is key to innovation. Multicultural teams foster creativity, adaptability, and a broader understanding of global challenges, leading to more sustainable solutions.
- Shared Purpose: A cohesive team is built around a common mission, which serves as a guiding force throughout the entrepreneurial journey. As emphasized in the **5P framework**, a clearly defined and shared purpose significantly enhances long-term success.
- **Complementary Skills:** High-performing teams combine a balance of **hard and soft skills**, ensuring that technical expertise is complemented by emotional intelligence, leadership, and collaboration.

- **Trust and Psychological Safety:** Teams thrive when members feel secure in expressing ideas, challenging assumptions, and taking risks. By fostering an environment of **vulnerability and empathy**, we strengthen team dynamics and enhance collective creativity.
- Commitment to Learning and Growth: Teams evolve through different phases of development, as outlined in David
   Sibbet's High-Performance Team Model. Recognizing these stages enables participants to navigate challenges,
   develop resilience, and continuously improve their collaboration.

In **Social4Impact**, team creation is not a random process but a structured journey. Participants engage in activities that facilitate **shared interest discovery, expectation alignment, and collaborative goal-setting**. The **"Getting to Know Myself"** module provides a foundation for self-reflection, enabling individuals to identify their strengths, values, and areas for growth before forming teams.

By designing teams with intention and aligning them with these principles, we lay the groundwork for high-impact projects that drive meaningful change. Participants are not just joining a team—they are **co-creating an entrepreneurial community** committed to tackling the climate crisis through **innovation, collaboration, and action** 

### 3. Challenge Definition & Context Setting

Once teams have been formed and have selected a challenge or thematic area to work on, the next crucial step is to **dive deep into the problem space**. For a solution to generate real impact, teams must first develop a **comprehensive understanding of the problem**, empathizing with the context, connecting with reality, and identifying the root causes.

This phase consists of three key research approaches:

### 1. Structured Research – Understanding the Facts

Participants conduct a preliminary **desk research** phase, gathering relevant data to better define their challenge. They explore statistics, reports, case studies, and existing research to **validate the problem and uncover key insights**. This structured investigation helps refine their focus, identifying specific **pain points** and real-world constraints within their chosen challenge.

To guide this process, teams use the 5W's Problem Statement Template to ensure clarity:

• Who is affected by the problem?

- What is happening?
- Where is this issue occurring?
- When does this problem arise?
- Why does this problem exist?

By answering these questions, teams **define their challenge in a precise and structured way**, transitioning from a broad topic to a well-framed **problem statement**.



Figure 11. 5W's Problem Statement Template.

### 2. Root Cause Analysis – The Problem Tree Approach

To further **deepen their understanding**, teams will use the **Problem Tree**, a key tool from the **Theory of Change** framework.

This tool helps dissect the problem by identifying:

- The core problem (trunk): The central issue the team wants to address.
- The root causes (roots): The underlying factors that contribute to the problem.
- The consequences/symptoms (branches): The visible effects caused by the problem.

By mapping out these elements, teams **visualize the complexity of the issue**, ensuring they **address the root causes rather than just the symptoms**. This analysis will **guide the ideation process** in the next module, helping teams focus on solutions with real transformative potential.



Figure 12. The Problem Tree.

### 3. Field Research – Engaging with the Real World

Once teams have defined their problem, they move beyond desk research and actively engage with the environment and the people affected by the issue. **Real-life validation** is essential to ensure that their assumptions align with reality.

This phase is **inspired by Liz Sanders' participatory design research approach**, where teams decide:

- How they want to interact with the affected stakeholders (e.g., interviews, surveys, participatory workshops).
- What **specific insights** they need to gather to better understand the problem.

To facilitate this, teams participate in an **Action Day**—a field research experience where they step outside the working space and engage directly with the context and the community. The goal is to collect **qualitative insights**, personal stories, and contextual nuances that numbers alone cannot reveal.

### **Research as a Continuous Process**

While this module provides the foundation for problem exploration, **research never truly ends**. A strong impact-driven project must constantly adapt, staying informed about the **evolving realities** of its context. The ability to continuously listen, observe, and integrate new insights is what differentiates **a rigid idea from a truly adaptable and sustainable solution**.

Through **Module 3**, participants learn that **falling in love with the problem** is a fundamental step in developing effective solutions. By combining **data-driven insights (5W's Problem Statement)** with **systemic root cause analysis (Problem Tree)** and **real-world validation (Action Day)**.

### 4. Ideation Process & Concept Validation

Once the teams have defined the challenge they wish to tackle and have developed a deep understanding of the affected people, the location, and the real-world context, the next crucial step is to generate a solution for the identified problem. The ideation process consists of two key phases: **opening up to creativity and innovation** and **focusing on the most viable ideas** that can create meaningful impact within the investigated context.

The ideation process follows an iterative approach inspired by **Design Thinking, Lean User Experience, Agile Development, and Growth Hacking**. These methodologies guide the way teams explore problems, validate assumptions, develop solutions, and refine their ideas:

- **Design Thinking:** A human-centered approach that emphasizes empathy, problem definition, ideation, prototyping, and testing.
- Lean User Experience: A process that focuses on rapid iteration and user feedback to improve ideas before large-scale implementation.
- Agile Development: A flexible, adaptive approach that encourages iterative testing and continuous improvement.
- **Growth Hacking:** A strategy-driven mindset that uses experimentation and data analysis to optimize solutions for scalability.

These frameworks ensure that the ideation and validation process is both **user-centered and impact-driven**, maximizing the chances of developing a solution that is **feasible**, **desirable**, **and viable** in real-world conditions.



Figure 13. Design Thinking, Lean user Experience, Agile Development & Growth Hacking.

### Phase 1: Divergent Thinking – Creativity and Idea Generation

The first phase of ideation is all about generating **a large quantity of ideas** rather than focusing on their quality. Encouraging a free flow of ideas is essential to unlock innovative solutions. The first exercise used in this stage is a **20-minute brainstorming session**, where teams, guided by a clear objective, generate as many ideas as possible, writing each idea on post-it notes.

To prevent creative blocks, additional perspectives can be introduced to inspire new thoughts. For example, participants may consider: *How would a specific individual think about this challenge?* They can put themselves in the mindset of different people, such as **Greta Thunberg, Donald Trump, a child, an artist, or a scientist**. Alternatively, they can imagine how the challenge would manifest in a completely different environment. These shifts in perspective help break mental barriers and encourage fresh ideas.

After generating a diverse set of ideas, teams review all written post-its, grouping similar concepts together to identify emerging themes. At this point, participants apply **Edward de Bono's Six Thinking Hats** <sup>3</sup> methodology to explore different dimensions of the ideas:

- White Hat (Facts & Data): What are the objective facts surrounding this idea?
- Red Hat (Emotions & Intuition): How do we feel about this idea?
- Black Hat (Challenges & Risks): What potential problems or barriers could arise?
- Yellow Hat (Optimism & Benefits): What are the strengths and positive aspects?
- Green Hat (Creativity & Alternatives): What variations or improvements could be made?
- Blue Hat (Process & Structure): How can we manage the thinking process effectively?

By applying this structured framework, teams gain a deeper understanding of the feasibility, risks, and opportunities associated with each idea.



Figure 14. Edward de Bono - Six Thinking Hats.

### Phase 2: Convergent Thinking – Filtering and Selecting the Best Idea

Once a broad range of ideas has been generated, the next step is to narrow down the options to the most **viable and impactful** solutions. This is done through a structured selection process involving **open dialogue** within the team.

The **IN/OUT tool** is used to categorize ideas:

- **IN:** Ideas that are promising and align with the team's objectives.
- **OUT:** Ideas that do not fit or lack feasibility.





To further refine the selection, teams utilize the **Selecting some ideas Matrix**, plotting their ideas on a graph based on two criteria:

- Viability (X-axis): How realistically can this idea be implemented?
- Desirability (Y-axis): How much positive change will this idea create?

The **most viable and attractive ideas** will naturally appear towards the top-right quadrant of the matrix, guiding teams toward selecting the strongest concept to develop further.

DESIRABILITY +	This is a process through which ideas are filtered in order to obtain one to develop. Once a group brainstoming session has be held, a setted of the most provential ideas must be mode. For this, it is convenient to order them and discuss time. We should permanently discard any idea, but archive hem to have a bank of ideas in case the one chosen fails in the testing phase. In the gra session, it is convenient to <b>make the section through voting, following three criteria:</b> • What is the most innovative idea? • What is the most innovative idea?	not
	VIABILITY	+

### Figure 16. Selecting some ideas matrix.

The ideation and concept validation phase is fundamental in **transforming abstract problems into concrete, actionable solutions**. By embracing a creative mindset, exploring multiple perspectives, and systematically refining their ideas, participants develop solutions that are both innovative and **aligned with real-world needs**. The tools and techniques used in this module ensure that teams not only think broadly but also focus on creating solutions with tangible impact.

After selecting an idea, the next crucial step is **concept validation**. Before further developing the solution, teams participate in another **Action Day**, where they go into the real world to test their idea with their **target audience**. They engage directly with potential users, asking questions such as:

- Does this idea make sense to you?
- How would you use it?
- What would you change or improve?

This validation process ensures that the concept aligns with real user needs rather than just the team's assumptions. The insights gathered during this phase provide critical feedback, helping refine the solution before moving to the next development stage.



To close this module, each team will be able to answer the 5W's 1H:

Figure 17. 5W1H.

### 5. Market Validation & Prototyping

After completing the ideation process, teams have developed an initial concept. However, before moving forward, it is crucial to reconnect with reality and validate whether the idea truly makes sense within the selected context. The goal of

this phase is to test assumptions, refine solutions, and ensure that the proposed idea effectively addresses the identified challenge.

This module consists of two key steps:

1. Market Validation – Testing Assumptions in the Real World

Many solutions fail because they are designed without a deep understanding of the end-user. To avoid this, teams will return to the field for another Action Day, engaging directly with the people who will potentially use or be affected by the solution.

The objectives of this Action Day include:

- Validating the idea's relevance Does the concept truly address the needs of the challenge?
- Understanding user perspectives What do potential users think about the proposed solution?
- Identifying missing elements Are there aspects that should be reconsidered or adapted before further development?

This step is crucial because co-created and user-validated solutions have a much higher chance of success and impact. Often, innovators design solutions for people they do not fully understand, leading to ideas that, despite their potential, do not fit into the users' reality.

Key Insight: The best ideas are not those that we assume will work, but those that are tested, adapted, and refined with real users.

2. From Idea to Prototype - Turning Concepts into Action

After gathering feedback from Action Day, teams refine their ideas and start thinking about how to prototype their solution. At this stage, the goal is not to develop a full-scale version but to create a simple, tangible representation of the idea to test and improve before making significant investments.

A guiding question for this phase is: "If you had to start working on this project tomorrow, how would you begin?"

This mindset helps teams focus on small, actionable steps that can lead to bigger long-term impacts. Instead of trying to perfect an idea before testing it, they will adopt an iterative approach, learning and improving continuously.

To structure this process, teams will use two key tools:

Customer Journey Map: Helps visualize the relationship between the user and the solution. Maps out the user's experience step by step, from the first interaction to the final outcome. Identifies pain points, motivations, and opportunities to improve engagement.



Figure 18. Customer Journey Map

Value Proposition Canvas: Ensures alignment between user needs and what the project offers. Helps teams refine their solution by identifying gains (benefits) and pains (challenges) from the user's perspective. Validates whether the proposed value truly matches the expectations and demands of the target audience.



Figure 19. Value Proposition Canvas

Market validation and prototyping are not one-time steps but an ongoing process. Teams will continuously test, refine, and adapt their ideas, ensuring that the solution remains relevant and impactful. The more a project stays connected to its users and context, the greater its chances of long-term success.

By the end of Module 5, teams will have a validated concept and an initial prototype, positioning them to move forward with greater confidence, knowing that their solution is both desirable and feasible in the real world.

### 6. Market & Customer Analysis

Once a project has been validated in the market, the next step is to **analyze the broader ecosystem** in which it will operate. This phase shifts the focus toward understanding **who the key players are, what solutions already exist, and how customers interact with similar products and services**.

This module consists of two fundamental areas of analysis:

### 1. Market Analysis – Understanding the Competitive Landscape

Before launching a solution, it is crucial to **assess the current market** to avoid reinventing the wheel, identify gaps, and understand what works and what doesn't. This analysis will help teams define a **differentiation strategy** and ensure their project is positioned in a way that adds value.

Key aspects to consider:

- Who are the existing players? (Competitors, allies, potential partners)
- What solutions are already available?
- What are the strengths and weaknesses of these solutions?
- What market trends and opportunities exist?

### Tool: Case Study

A useful method for gaining insight into successful projects is conducting a case study of existing businesses, products,

or services in a similar field. This helps teams understand best practices, potential pitfalls, and innovation opportunities.



### Figure 20. Case Study

### Tool:

Stakeholder

Map

To fully grasp the market landscape, teams will create a Stakeholder Map to identify all the relevant actors involved in their

sector, including:

- Competitors
- Customers
- Suppliers
- Regulators
- Investors
- NGOs and community groups

By mapping these stakeholders, teams can **identify collaboration opportunities, potential barriers, and the dynamics of the ecosystem** in which they will operate.



Figure 21. Stakeholders Map

### 2. Customer Analysis – Understanding User Behavior

Beyond analyzing the market, teams must deeply understand their **target customers**—how they behave, make decisions, and interact with solutions. This step ensures that the project aligns with real user needs and preferences.

Key aspects to explore:

- How do customers currently solve this problem?
- What are their motivations and pain points?
- How do they interact with similar products or services?
- What price are they willing to pay?
- How do they discover and engage with new solutions?

### Tool: Persona Canvas

Teams will develop **Persona Canvas**, which are fictional representations of their ideal customers based on real data and research. This tool helps define:

- Demographics (age, location, income, etc.)
- Interests, behaviors, and motivations
- Challenges and pain points
- Preferred communication and purchasing channels



Figure 22. Persona Canvas

### Tool:

### Service

### Blueprint

To further refine their understanding of customer interactions, teams will use the **Service Blueprint** methodology, which

allows them to:

- Visualize the **entire journey** a customer goes through when interacting with their solution.
- Identify **critical touchpoints** (where engagement happens).
- Pinpoint pain points and areas for improvement.

TOOL	SERVICE BLUEPRIN	-
Is a scheme that allows us to ning of the system. Normal journey map and channels	clefine and visualize on paper all the actors involved in a service, from the dient to the suppliers, and thus y, a single service blueprint is not carried out, but all the necessary ones, since one must be developed for we want to analyze.	have a deepe each customer
Physical Evidence		
Customer Action		
LINE OF INTERACTIO	Ν	
Employee contact		
LINE OF VISIBILITY		
Employee actions not seen by the customer		
INTERNAL LINE OF		
INTERACTION		
Internal processes that support the employee		

Figure 23. Service Blueprint.

This knowledge will allow teams to **position their solution strategically** in the market, ensuring they address real needs while maintaining a competitive advantage.

### 7. Application of Tech4Good

Technology has the potential to be a **powerful catalyst for social and environmental change**. While not all projects need to be technology-based, understanding how digital tools, data science, and emerging technologies can **enhance**, **scale**, **or accelerate** solutions is essential for maximizing impact.

This module introduces the **Tech4Good approach**, which integrates **technology with social innovation** to create solutions that are **scalable**, **sustainable**, **and inclusive**. Participants will explore how they can strategically leverage technology— whether through **automation**, **digital platforms**, **artificial intelligence**, **blockchain**, **or open-source tools**—to enhance their projects and drive meaningful change.

### 1. The Role of Technology in Social Innovation

Technology can support social and environmental impact in multiple ways, including:

- **Expanding Reach:** Digital platforms, social media, and mobile applications enable projects to reach a wider audience, breaking geographical barriers.
- Improving Efficiency: Automation and data-driven decision-making streamline processes, optimize resources, and reduce operational costs.
- Enhancing Accessibility: Assistive technologies, inclusive design, and low-tech solutions ensure that more people can benefit from innovation.
- Strengthening Transparency and Trust: Blockchain and decentralized systems can help track impact, improve governance, and enhance accountability.
- Scaling Impact: Digital solutions allow projects to grow beyond local implementation and create systemic change.

Even if a project is not **technology-driven**, understanding how to integrate tech elements can **multiply its impact** and create new opportunities for growth and collaboration.

### 2. Identifying the Right Technology for Your Project

To determine which technologies can best support a social innovation project, teams can use tools such as the **Tech4Good Compass**. This framework helps assess:

- The Problem Context: What are the biggest pain points in the challenge being addressed?
- User Needs & Accessibility: What technologies can make the solution more inclusive and user-friendly?
- Scalability Potential: What digital tools can help expand the reach of the project?
- **Resource Constraints:** What free, open-source, or low-cost tech options are available?

Participants will also explore case studies of successful Tech4Good initiatives, including:

- Al for Social Good (e.g., predictive analytics for disaster response)
- Blockchain for Transparency (e.g., tracking fair trade supply chains)
- IoT for Sustainability (e.g., smart sensors to monitor air quality)
- Crowdsourcing & Open Data (e.g., citizen-driven environmental monitoring)

By understanding how technology has been applied in different impact sectors, teams can **identify opportunities to integrate tech solutions into their own projects**.

### 3. Practical Application & Ethical Considerations

While technology can be a powerful tool, it must be applied **ethically and responsibly**. This module also encourages teams to reflect on:

- **Digital Inclusion:** Ensuring access to technology for all communities, including those with limited connectivity.
- Data Privacy & Security: Protecting sensitive information and ensuring transparency in data usage.
- Environmental Impact: Considering the carbon footprint of digital solutions and adopting sustainable tech practices.
- Bias & Fairness: Avoiding unintended discrimination in AI, algorithms, and automated systems.

By integrating a **human-centered approach** to technology, participants will learn how to use digital tools **without reinforcing inequalities** or creating new challenges.

### 8. Prototyping

Prototyping is a key step in the innovation process, allowing teams to materialize their ideas, test their feasibility, and refine their concept based on user feedback. A prototype serves as an early version of a product, service, or solution, helping teams evaluate its potential impact before full-scale implementation. The objective of this phase is not to create a final version but rather a testable model that allows teams to validate ideas, test assumptions, gather user feedback, and make the necessary improvements before investing significant resources.

The selection of the appropriate prototyping method depends on the nature of the solution. If the project involves a service or a behavioral intervention, a **storyboard** can be a useful tool to map out the user journey. A storyboard is a visual representation that outlines the key steps a user would take when interacting with the solution. To create one, teams must first define the scenario and identify the different phases of user interaction, then sketch simple visuals to represent each step and add descriptive captions. This process helps visualize potential pain points and refine the design accordingly.



### STORYBOARD TEMPLATE

Figure 24. Storyboard.

For digital solutions such as applications, platforms, or websites, **mock-ups and wireframes** allow teams to test the structure and user interface before development. Several tools, such as Figma, Adobe XD, and Balsamiq, can be used to create interactive digital prototypes. The process involves sketching a rough layout, defining the main screens, adding interactive elements to simulate navigation, and testing usability with users. This method ensures that the final product is usercentered and functional before coding begins.

In cases where the solution is a physical product, prototyping involves building a tangible model using available materials. Depending on the complexity of the design, teams can use methods such as **3D printing, laser cutting**, or basic materials like **cardboard**, **clay**, **or recycled components** to create an early version of the product. This process starts with sketching the idea, selecting suitable materials, constructing the prototype, and testing it to identify necessary refinements. Creating physical prototypes is essential to test functionality and optimize the design before moving into large-scale production.

For projects that focus on social interventions, community engagement, or behavioral changes, experience prototyping and role-playing exercises allow teams to simulate real-life interactions and refine service-based solutions. This approach involves defining a scenario, assigning roles to simulate interactions between users and service providers, and gathering feedback to improve the service experience. By testing how users engage with the solution in a controlled environment, teams can adjust key aspects before implementation.

Once a prototype is developed, the next step is testing it with real users to gather insights and refine it based on their responses. This process involves identifying the target users, defining key questions regarding usability and functionality, observing user interactions, documenting feedback, and iterating on the prototype to address any identified challenges. A structured approach ensures that the final solution is both practical and impactful.

To complement the prototyping process, teams can integrate strategic tools such as the **Customer Journey Map and the Value Proposition Canvas**. The Customer Journey Map helps outline the different stages of user interaction with the solution, from initial discovery to long-term engagement, identifying opportunities to enhance user experience. The Value Proposition Canvas ensures alignment between the identified needs of users and the features of the proposed solution, increasing the likelihood of adoption and success.

Prototyping is a continuous and iterative process that allows teams to refine their solutions before large-scale implementation. By adopting a user-centered approach and leveraging appropriate prototyping methods, teams can ensure that their projects are both feasible and impactful, maximizing their potential to create meaningful change.

### 9. Growth Strategy

In previous modules, we have discussed how to develop solutions with impact (social & environmental), emphasizing the importance of taking small, measurable steps to generate tangible results in the short term. However, the real impact of a project does not lie only in its initial phase but in its ability to grow and scale. Designing an effective growth strategy ensures that the project evolves, adapts to new needs, and maximizes its positive impact on society.

It is crucial to remember that within the **impact economy**, growth is not about maximizing profit but about **expanding positive impact and reducing inequality gaps**. Therefore, our growth strategy must focus on **how to scale the project**, **ensure its sustainability**, and adapt to new opportunities without compromising its core values.

To design this growth strategy, we will use the **"Mapping your growth trajectory: Where do I want to be in 5 years from now?"** tool. This framework helps visualize the project's development over five years by breaking it down into different time horizons and key dimensions.

### How to Use the "Mapping Your Growth Trajectory" Tool

This tool is structured as a **matrix that allows teams to plan the project's growth over time** based on different strategic aspects. It consists of **three time horizons** and five key growth dimensions:

### 1. Time Horizons

- **Present (2025):** The current state of the project, including its reach, impact, and organizational structure.
- Horizon 1 (2026-2027): Short-term goals, including initial expansions and improvements in products or services.
- Horizon 2 (2028-2029): Medium-term development, focusing on consolidating growth, diversifying strategies, and exploring new opportunities.
- Horizon 3 (2030): The long-term vision, including sustainability, international expansion, and large-scale impact.

### 2. Key Growth Dimensions

- **Geographic Reach:** Expansion of the project in terms of location—will it remain local, expand regionally, nationally, or internationally?
- **Products/Services:** Evolution of the project's offerings, including new product lines, complementary services, or innovations in the existing proposal.
- **Annual Revenues:** While financial growth is not the primary goal, it is essential to define a sustainability strategy to ensure the project's continuity.
- Number of Clients/Users: A projection of how many people will benefit from the solution over time.
- Number of Employees: Growth of the team, considering the organizational expansion needed to support the project's impact and scale.

### Steps to Implement the Growth Strategy

### 1. Define the Current State (Present – 2025):

- Identify the starting point of the project in each of the five key dimensions.
- Analyze strengths and weaknesses that may influence future growth.

### 2. Set Short-Term Goals (Horizon 1 – 2026-2027):

- Define what immediate improvements or expansions can be achieved in the next two years.
- Determine the resources needed to reach these goals.

### 3. Plan for Medium-Term Growth (Horizon 2 – 2028-2029):

- Design strategies to consolidate impact, optimize processes, and diversify.
- Identify potential strategic partners and collaboration opportunities.

### 4. Project the Long-Term Vision (Horizon 3 – 2030):

- Imagine the maximum impact the project could achieve in five years.
- Set ambitious yet sustainable goals that align expansion with social impact.

Using the "Mapping your growth trajectory" tool enables teams to structure their growth strategy in a clear and organized way, ensuring that every step of the project's evolution aligns with its values and impact objectives. By following a **scalable and adaptable plan**, projects can **maximize their potential and generate large-scale positive change** while staying true to their mission.

		Dreath strategy	nex balling		
	Mappin	a your are	wth traject	orv	
W	Mappin /here do I w	ant to be i	n 5 years f	rom now?	
	Present	Horizon		zon 2	Horizon 3
- 1	Present	HOHZON	1 Hon	2011 2	2039
Seographic					
reach:					
2					
Products /					
Services					
103					
Oler					
~ (					
\$ Annual					
revenues					
12					
0					
-					
of clients/					
Users					
0.00.00					
mmm					
Employees					
10					

Figure 25. Mapping your growth trajectory

### **10. Business Model Canvas**

Once a project has been developed and validated in the market, the next step is to define its business model. This means understanding the financial aspects of the idea—how much it costs, who is going to pay for it, and how it generates value. In the context of impact-driven initiatives, a business model should not only focus on financial sustainability but also on maximizing social and environmental impact. The challenge is to design a model that ensures the long-term viability of the project while staying aligned with its mission and values.

There are several frameworks available for structuring a business model, each with a different focus:

- Business Model Canvas (BMC): The most traditional and widely used framework, developed by Alexander
  Osterwalder. It outlines key business elements such as value proposition, revenue streams, cost structure,
  customer segments, and key partners. This model is often used in commercial ventures but can also be adapted
  to social enterprises.
- Sustainable Business Model Canvas: A variation of the traditional BMC that incorporates sustainability principles, considering how environmental and social factors influence the business and how sustainability can be a competitive advantage.
- Social Business Model Canvas: Designed for social enterprises, this model integrates impact-driven components, ensuring that social value creation is as important as financial sustainability. It highlights the beneficiaries, impact measurement, and partnerships with mission-aligned stakeholders.
- **Mission Model Canvas:** Originally developed for public and nonprofit organizations, this model replaces the traditional "customers" with "beneficiaries" and focuses on achieving a mission rather than generating profits. It helps organizations align their activities with long-term impact objectives.

In this program, we introduce the **"All in One Canvas,"** a comprehensive business model framework that integrates the key elements of the previous models into a single tool. This model is particularly useful for impact-driven projects as it balances financial sustainability with maximizing positive social and environmental outcomes while minimizing negative effects.

The "All in One Canvas" is structured into several key sections:

1. **Positive Impacts (Maximise):** Identifies the second and third-order positive impacts of the project on the planet, society, and the economy. It focuses on increasing sustainability, transparency, and circularity across the value chain.

- 2. Sustainable Partners: Identifies strategic partners that can help enhance sustainability across the supply chain.
- 3. **Sustainable Value Creation:** Defines key activities and how they can be adjusted to enhance sustainability, including the use of enabling sustainable technologies.
- 4. **Sustainable Tech & Resources:** Evaluates natural, energy, and technical resources needed and explores potential substitutions for more sustainable options.
- 5. **Negative Impacts (Minimise):** Examines potential first, second, and third-order negative impacts and how they can be minimized. This includes identifying risks such as waste disposal, rebound effects, and technological risks.
- 6. **Sustainable Value Proposition:** Defines the problem the project is solving, the value created, and how sustainability is integrated into customer value. It also considers ownership models (e.g., product-as-a-service) and extending product life cycles.
- 7. **Sustainable Customer Relations:** Ensures customer relationships are sustainable and aligned with long-term expectations.
- 8. **Responsible Customers:** Encourages customers to act sustainably and identifies target groups that can promote the sustainable solution.
- 9. **Sustainable Channels:** Analyses distribution channels to ensure they are circular and aligned with sustainability goals.
- 10. End of Life: Considers what happens at the end of a product's life cycle, focusing on profitable recycling, upcycling, reuse, or refurbishment.
- 11. Financial and Operational Aspects: These sections address cost structure, funding sources, and financial sustainability.
  - Cost Structure & Additional Costs: Identifies required investments and the feasibility of using sustainable alternatives.
  - **Subsidisation:** Explores the availability of tax benefits, subsidies, or third-party funding to support the initiative.
  - **Revenue & Sustainability Premium:** Examines potential revenue streams, customer willingness to pay a premium for sustainability, and price structures that incentivize sustainable behaviour.

By using the **"All in One Canvas,"** teams can develop a robust business model that aligns financial sustainability with impactdriven objectives. This framework ensures that all key elements—partners, value creation, resources, customer relationships, distribution, and financial structures—are considered in a holistic way. Through this approach, projects can maximize their positive impact while remaining economically viable, making them more attractive to investors, partners, and stakeholders in the impact economy.

Positive Impacts (Maximise) where are positive 2 <sup>nd</sup> and 2 <sup>nd</sup> index impacts of your result or primer society. The converse approximation (or lease) if have can there impacts for measurements where complete pended			or your What are negative	ative impacts (Minimise) $\mu_{1,2} \sim a_{1,2} $ and $\mu_{2}^{a}$		
How o sastoir Can w indust Can w regula	Sustainable partners reporting porting in decording an ar most file deader agedy characteristic and ar most file deader agedy charac- teristic and a sub-address for some and the sub-partners of the address of the sub-partners of the address of the decord of the address of the address decord of the address of the address of the address decord of the address of the address of the address decord of the address of	Sustainable Value Creation     Sub or a value value (Value Creation     sub of the or to go much or the or t	Estatiable Value     Proposition     Sustainable Value     Proposition     Sustainable Value     Proposition     Sustainable Value     Sustainable     Su	Sustainable Customer Relations the name relationships and/or subscriptions and are subscription The or are not and and and and and and are an and and and and and and are and and and and and the and	Responsible customers     Where are autometers? How care where are autometers? How care where the custometer may how the premiers or autometers of the the premiers of the series of the series of the series of the series the series of the series of the series of the series of the series of the series of the series of the series of the series of the series of the series of the series the series of the series of the series of the series where the series of the series of the series of the series the series of the series of the series of the series of the series the series of the ser	
Cost Structure & Additional Costs We are required in the interference of the end of the		Subsidisation Do tax kenness & métridier or 3* party familieg out for my endorsour?	Revenue & Sust      which are subting and provide inverse are      Are container institute to pay a providing M      converse result undere advantage stars to      be price structures resist that incentialare	er sustaina6Hity? 1 sustainable proposition elements?		

Figure 26. The All In One Canvas

### **11. Impact Measurement**

Creating a project within the impact economy requires more than just developing innovative solutions—it demands a clear understanding of how those solutions generate real, measurable change. To ensure that projects remain aligned with their mission and continuously improve, impact measurement is essential. This process allows teams to assess whether they are truly addressing the challenges they set out to solve, adjust their strategies when necessary, and communicate their achievements to stakeholders, investors, and communities. Impact measurement should not be seen as a final step but as an ongoing process that helps guide decision-making and optimize the project's effectiveness.

Measuring impact is important for several reasons. First, it ensures the effectiveness of the project by validating whether it is achieving its intended goals and making a real difference. Second, it provides data-driven insights that guide decisionmaking, allowing teams to adjust their strategies and operations accordingly. Third, it attracts support and funding, as demonstrating measurable impact makes it easier to engage investors, grant organizations, and partners. Fourth, it strengthens accountability and transparency, ensuring that the project stays true to its mission and delivers real value to its beneficiaries. Finally, it encourages continuous improvement by identifying opportunities to scale or optimize the project for greater impact.

To structure their impact assessment, participants will work with two essential tools: **Impact Assessment** and **P.E.S.T.E.L analysis**. The Impact Assessment tool provides a framework for identifying and measuring the direct, indirect, and systemic impact of a project. The process typically involves defining impact goals by specifying the change the project aims to create and identifying its beneficiaries, establishing key performance indicators (KPIs) that track qualitative and quantitative progress (such as the number of people reached, improvement in quality of life, reduction of environmental impact, or increased access to services), collecting data through surveys, interviews, case studies, and secondary research, analyzing and reporting findings to identify trends and adjust strategies, and finally, communicating insights to stakeholders, funders, and the community to enhance credibility and engagement.



Figure 27. Impact Assesement

In addition to direct impact assessment, it is also crucial to understand the broader external factors that influence a project. For this, teams will use the **P.E.S.T.E.L framework**, which analyzes the political, economic, social, technological, environmental, and legal contexts in which the project operates. The political dimension considers government policies, regulations, and stability that may affect the project. The economic aspect evaluates trends like inflation, funding availability, and market conditions that impact sustainability. The social factor explores cultural, demographic, and social trends that influence the project's adoption and relevance. The technological dimension assesses how advancements in technology support or challenge project execution. The environmental factor examines issues such as climate change and resource availability that could affect the project. Finally, the legal aspect identifies potential regulatory barriers or compliance requirements. By conducting a **P.E.S.T.E.L analysis**, teams can anticipate risks, adapt their strategies, and ensure their impact remains relevant despite changing external conditions.



Figure 28. P.E.S.T.E.L Analysis

To implement impact measurement effectively, teams should follow a structured approach. The first step is defining clear impact objectives that specify what the project aims to achieve and how success will be measured. Next, they must select measurable indicators that align with their mission and stakeholder expectations. Gathering and analyzing data using surveys, interviews, and existing sources allows for tracking progress over time. Applying the **P.E.S.T.E.L analysis** helps identify external factors that could influence the project's success. Based on these findings, teams can adjust and improve their strategies, taking corrective actions when needed. Finally, reporting and sharing results transparently with funders, partners, and beneficiaries builds trust and strengthens project credibility.

Impact measurement is not just about reporting numbers—it is about understanding, learning, and evolving to maximize the positive change a project can create. By using tools like **Impact Assessment** and **P.E.S.T.E.L analysis**, teams can ensure that their projects remain relevant, effective, and adaptable in an ever-changing environment. Embedding impact measurement into their strategy will equip them to scale their initiatives, secure resources, and, most importantly, create meaningful and lasting change.

### 12. Pitching

One of the most crucial aspects of any project is the ability to communicate it effectively. A great idea alone is not enough teams must be able to present their project clearly, convincingly, and compellingly to potential stakeholders, investors, partners, or even the general public. Pitching is not just about sharing information; it is about storytelling, engaging the audience, and making them see why this project matters and why they should support it. A well-delivered pitch can open doors to funding, partnerships, and opportunities, ultimately increasing the chances of the project's success and impact.

Pitching requires a balance between content and delivery. On one hand, the information presented must be clear, concise, and relevant. On the other hand, the way it is delivered—body language, tone, and confidence—can make the difference between an engaging pitch and one that fails to capture interest. This module is designed as a workshop where participants will develop their public speaking skills and learn how to structure a pitch that effectively communicates their project's value proposition.

A successful pitch follows a structured narrative, ensuring that the audience understands the problem, the proposed solution, and why this team is the right one to implement it. One useful tool for structuring a pitch is the **Pitching Canvas**, which provides a framework for organizing key information. The canvas typically includes:

- Problem Statement Clearly define the challenge the project addresses. Why is this problem significant? Who is affected?
- 2. Solution Present the innovative idea or project. How does it solve the problem effectively? What makes it unique?
- 3. **Impact** Demonstrate the potential social or environmental impact. What measurable change will the project create?
- 4. Market and Audience Identify the target users or beneficiaries. Why do they need this solution?
- 5. **Business Model** Explain how the project sustains itself financially. If applicable, what revenue model or funding sources will support it?
- 6. Competitive Advantage Highlight what sets this project apart from existing solutions. Why is this the best option?
- 7. Call to Action End with a clear and compelling ask. What do you need from the audience—funding, partnerships, support?

the second se	and the second
A statement of what changes your produ	uct and service are making in the world.
PAIN (+ GAIN)	PRODUCT
What problem are you solving for your customers? What does the pain result in? Can you make pain a human problem, that everyone can relate to? How many people need to solve this problem - market size? Have you valida ted that people will pay to have it solved?	As simple as possible: How dees It work? What does your product do for customers? What opportunites does a result of your product? What opportunites does it offer to make people faster, more profitable, more effi- cient, happier, more secure? (Make your you don't let the product dominate the playing field).
PRODUCT DEMO	
Live demonstration? (always risky, but powerful if it works).	WHAT'S UNIQUE?
A screen flow movie of a working application convinces that this is real. The physical product convinces that it can be run. Screenshots are fine too, but they can look like a mockup - moving the product on the screen is better. Can you show a real customer using R?	Technology/Relationships/Partnerships. How do you help your customers get different results than your competitors, or alter natives? What's new and innovative about your solution? Demonstrate that you have researched the market and know what competition exists
BUSINESS MODEL	CUSTOMER TRACTION
How do you get paid? What is the opportunity for growth? How can you expand beyond your current reach - new industries, territories, part nerships and technology applications?	PR coverage? Competitor profits?
INVESTMENT	Use the data and facts to strengthen your case.
Have you invested the money yourself? Have you raised money so far? How much are you looking for now? reach with the money? How many and what type of investor are you looking for? What expectations do you have of your investor, reach used.	TEAM What relevant experience and skills does your team have that support your story? The brands they worked for? Achievements? Sales success? What brings you toge ther as people and a entregrement to solve this problem? What is special about your teams character that will make you stand out and be memorable?
Call to action and closing statement	Why you?
Finish the Pitch strongly with a clear request to the audience to take action - what is your next step?	Why do you care about solving this problem for your customers? How has your life been affected by this industry? Why should your audience have confidence that you are driven to do what you promise, no matter what? to take action, what is your next step

Figure 29. Pitching Canvas

In addition to structuring the content, delivering a pitch effectively requires mastering public speaking techniques. Teams will work on building confidence, improving voice projection, maintaining eye contact, and using body language to reinforce their message. They will also practice keeping their presentations concise—most pitches should be between **3 to 5 minutes**—as audiences often have limited attention spans and many competing priorities.

Throughout this module, participants will engage in **hands-on exercises**, including practicing their pitches in front of their peers and receiving constructive feedback. They will refine their storytelling techniques, ensuring their presentations are not just informative but also persuasive and memorable. By the end of the workshop, each team will have a **well-structured**, **impactful pitch** that they can confidently deliver in real-world scenarios.

A strong pitch can make the difference between a project that remains an idea and one that becomes a reality. By learning how to communicate their vision effectively, teams increase their chances of securing the support and resources needed to bring their projects to life and maximize their impact.

# **Expected Impacts**

At the beginning of this journey, each participant engaged in a personal reflection on their motivations, expectations, and the change they aimed to create. As the process unfolds, this initial perspective will be revisited and contrasted with the final outcomes, allowing participants to measure their personal and professional growth, as well as the real impact of their projects.

Beyond the development of their specific initiatives, participants have worked in multicultural and multidisciplinary teams, an experience that has enhanced critical skills such as intercultural communication, adaptability, collaboration, and problem-solving. These skills are essential for tackling global challenges and implementing sustainable solutions in diverse social and economic contexts.

### Defining and Evaluating the Expected Impact

The expected impact of each project is not only about the tangible results but also about the process of innovation, learning, and collaboration. Key aspects include:

### Personal and Team Growth

- 1. How has working in multicultural teams influenced the way participants think about problem-solving and innovation?
- 2. What communication and teamwork strategies have been most effective in overcoming cultural and professional differences?
- 3. How have participants refined their original vision through interaction with peers and stakeholders?

### **Project-Specific Impact**

- Social Impact: How does the project improve people's quality of life? Does it enhance education, health, or social inclusion?
- 2. Environmental Impact: Does the project promote sustainability, reduce waste, or foster responsible consumption?
- 3. Economic Impact: What economic opportunities does it create? Does it promote financial inclusion or job creation?

Validation	and	Refinement	Through	Methodologies

To ensure that the expected impact is realistic, measurable, and scalable, two key tools are used:

- 1. Impact Assessment: A structured analysis of how the project influences its beneficiaries and stakeholders. This includes key performance indicators (KPIs), qualitative feedback, and continuous improvement strategies.
- 2. P.E.S.T.E.L Analysis: A framework to assess external factors that could shape the project's impact in the long term, including political, economic, social, technological, environmental, and legal aspects.

By applying these methodologies, participants refine their solutions, ensuring they are viable, relevant, and adaptable to different contexts.

### **Final Deliverable: Project Dossier**

As a culmination of the process, each team will submit a comprehensive dossier detailing the steps taken in the design, validation, and refinement of their project. This document should include:

- 1. The initial problem statement and how it evolved.
- 2. The methodologies applied and key findings.
- 3. The development and validation of their proposed solution.
- 4. The expected impact in social, environmental, and economic terms.
- 5. A reflection on team dynamics, challenges faced, and skills acquired.

This final dossier not only serves as a structured record of the work done but also as a foundation for scaling the project, attracting potential collaborators, funders, or stakeholders who share the vision of creating positive impact.

The expected impact of this process extends far beyond the individual projects. Participants will leave with a more refined understanding of social innovation, strengthened teamwork and leadership skills, and a concrete methodological approach to problem-solving. By revisiting their initial reflections, they will be able to measure how much they have grown—not just in terms of knowledge but also in the ability to turn ideas into action, collaborate across cultures, and drive meaningful change in society.

# Conclusions

The completion of this program marks not only the development of concrete projects but also a profound personal and professional transformation for participants. From the initial stages of personal reflection to the finalization of their project dossiers, they have engaged in a structured and immersive learning process designed to equip them with the tools and mindset necessary for sustainable social innovation and impact creation.

One of the most significant aspects of this journey has been the opportunity to work in multicultural and multidisciplinary teams, an experience that has enriched participants' perspectives and strengthened key competencies such as crosscultural communication, adaptability, and collaborative problem-solving. These skills are crucial in today's interconnected world, where the ability to navigate diverse viewpoints and co-create solutions is essential for addressing global challenges. By engaging with different cultural and professional backgrounds, participants have not only broadened their understanding of societal issues but have also learned to identify and leverage collective strengths in order to enhance their projects.

The structured methodology provided throughout the program has helped participants systematically approach problemsolving, moving from an initial idea to a fully developed and validated concept. Each module has guided them through problem identification, market validation, stakeholder analysis, impact measurement, and strategic growth planning, ensuring that their solutions are both viable and impactful. By applying methodologies such as design thinking, stakeholder mapping, and impact assessment, they have learned to ground their ideas in reality, ensuring that their solutions respond to actual needs rather than assumptions.

Another key takeaway has been the emphasis on iteration and adaptability. Participants have learned that social innovation is not a linear process but a continuous cycle of testing, feedback, and refinement. The action days, prototyping sessions, and validation exercises have been critical in challenging initial ideas, exposing blind spots, and encouraging improvements based on real-world interactions. This iterative mindset will be an invaluable asset as they continue working on their projects beyond the program.

At the end of this journey, each team has compiled a comprehensive project dossier detailing the steps taken, methodologies applied, and key insights gained throughout the process. This dossier serves as both a tangible outcome of their hard work and a roadmap for potential next steps, whether it be securing funding, launching a pilot program, or further developing their initiatives. Ultimately, the program has aimed not just to generate viable social projects, but to empower participants as changemakers—equipping them with the knowledge, skills, and confidence to drive positive change in their communities and beyond. While this marks the conclusion of the program, it is merely the beginning of their impact-driven journeys. With a solid foundation in social entrepreneurship, innovation strategies, and impact assessment, participants are now wellprepared to take their ideas forward, build on their experiences, and continue creating meaningful solutions for the future.

# References

<sup>1</sup> IDR Institute (n.d.) *Developmental Model of Intercultural Sensitivity (DMIS)*. Available at:

https://www.idrinstitute.org/dmis/ (Accessed: 18 February 2025).

<sup>2</sup> The Grove Consultants International (n.d.) *Team Performance Model*. Available at:

https://www.thegrove.com/methodology/team-performance-model (Accessed: 18 February 2025).

<sup>3</sup> **De Bono Group** (n.d.) *Six Thinking Hats*. Available at: <u>https://www.debonogroup.com/services/core-programs/six-</u>thinking-hats/ (Accessed: 18 February 2025).

### **Copyright Notice**

This content has been reproduced and shared with you by or on behalf of the TEAMIT+ Project (ID: 101111560) in compliance with applicable copyright laws.

The content referenced herein may be protected by copyright laws. Any further reproduction or communication of this material by you may be subject to copyright protection under relevant laws. **Do not remove this notice**.

TEAMIT+ Project (ID: 101111560) is committed to respecting and upholding copyright laws and regulations.